SESSION 15

Betty Hearn Morrow

Course Title:     A Social Vulnerability Approach to Disasters

Session 15:         Language and Literacy                                                     Time: 1 hour




Objectives:

At the conclusion of this session, the students should be able to:

Objective 15.1 
Analyze disaster case studies where language or literacy factors 


hampered the delivery of emergency or disaster messages or 



services

Objective 15.2
Use current data on US immigration patterns and education levels to identify potential patterns of language and literacy isolation in 
various regions of the country

Objective 15.3
Assess the reading level of disaster-related materials

Objective 15.4
Use national, state and local resources to translate or produce 



materials that are appropriate to local language and literacy 



patterns

Objective 15.5
Develop strategies for reaching isolated residents and communities 


with language-appropriate emergency and disaster-related 



messages


Scope:


Assists emergency managers in addressing vulnerability exacerbated by lack of English language proficiency, either oral or written. Patterns of literacy are examined, as well as examples of past disasters where language issues impeded response and recovery.  Skills developed in accessing literacy information, and assessing the readability levels of written materials, locating resources in appropriate languages and levels, and developing strategies for reaching language-isolated groups.   

Suggested Readings:

Instructor readings:

1.  Bolin, Robert with Lois Stanford. 1998. The Northridge Earthquake: Vulnerability and Disaster. London: Routledge

2.  Peacock, Walter Gillis, Betty Hearn Morrow and Hugh Gladwin. 1997. Hurricane Andrew: Ethnicity, Gender and the Sociology of Disaster. Miami: International Hurricane Center.

3.  Rodrigue, Christine M., Eugenie Rovai and Susan E. Place. 1997. “Construction of the “Northridge” Earthquake in Los Angeles’ English and Spanish Print Media: Damage, Attention, and Skewed Recovery.”  Chico: California State University Center for Hazards Research. Available at http://www.csulb.edu/~rodrigue/scehc97.htrm.

4.  Solis, Gabriela Y. Guidelines on Cultural Diversity and Disaster Management. Available at http://www.epc-pcc.gc.ca/research/scie_tech/guid_cult_e.html.


(This report prepared for Emergency Preparedness Canada has excellent suggestions for overcoming cultural barriers that are equally applicable to the US.)

Student  readings:

1.
Aguirre, Benigno. 1988. “The Lack of Warnings before the Saragosa Tornado.” International Journal of Mass Emergencies and Disasters 6 (1): 65-74.

2.
Duguay, Joanne. 1996. “Safe in any Language.” Emergency Preparedness Digest. December.

Supplementary readings:

1.
Subveri-Velez, F., M. Denney, A. Ozuna, C. Quintero, and J.V. Palerm. 1992. Communicating with California’s Spanish Speaking Populations: Assessing the Role of the Spanish-Language Broadcast Media and Selected Agencies in Providing Emergency Services. California Policy Seminar Report. Berkeley, CA: University of California.  

2.    Fothergill, Alice. 1996. “Gender, Risk and Disaster.” International Journal of Mass Emergencies and Disasters. 14(1):33-56.

General Requirements:  Briefly review session objectives [Slide 2]
Search for recent case studies of disasters where language and/or literacy issues were recorded and examples of efforts to overcome them. Collect samples of flyers, pamphlets, or emergency or disaster-related materials distributed by public and private agencies in a variety of languages and reading levels. Review the material found on the websites mentioned  as well as search for new sources of data and materials appropriate for low literacy or other-language audiences. 

Copy and distribute Handout 15.


Objective 15.1   Analyze disaster case studies where language or literacy factors 

                            hampered the delivery of emergency or disaster messages or  

                            services

Remarks:

   I.
Why is it important that emergency and disaster responders know the language and literacy levels of their communities? [Slide 3]

A.
The relevance of language and literacy to emergency management:

1. Communication is at the heart of all emergency and disaster response

2. If emergency managers cannot relay relevant information in a manner that is understood, the message is lost. 

3. The US is a diverse society, made up of people of varying levels of English proficiency and reading abilities 

4. Every part of the country is home to some immigrants, but they tend to be concentrated in the urban and coastal regions most prone to natural hazards such as earthquakes and coastal storms. 

5. A significant number of the native-born residents in most communities do not read well. 

II.  What are some examples of national disasters where language issues interfered with response and recovery? [Slide 4]


A.
Saragosa Tornado Example (Aguirre 1988)

1. 29 people killed, most of Mexican descent.

2. No warnings broadcast in Spanish on the local TV station

3. No warnings given on the cable Spanish TV station; it did not cover weather information.

B.
Hurricane Andrew Example (Peacock, Gladwin & Morrow 1998)
1. Many recent immigrants from Central and South American and the Caribbean lived and/or worked throughout the area

2. Spanish was the most common second language; Haitian Creole the next

3. Many low-income African Americans resided in the area, often with low educational levels, and thus low literacy

4. FEMA, American Red Cross, and other agencies were initially unprepared to deal with language problems

5. Information and assistance were slow to reach these groups

6. Some evidence that they never received the level of federal aid others did


C.
Northridge Earthquake Example (Bolin and Stanford 1998)

1. Large immigrant population

2. Spanish was most common language after English.

3. Dozens of other languages found in the impacted region

4. Responders were not prepared to communicate with most of them

5. Relief agencies had to adopt an aggressive outreach campaign, using translators

D. Other examples from instructor and/or students

Objective 15.2
Use current data on US immigration patterns and education levels 

                             to identify potential patterns of language and literacy isolation in           

                             various regions of the country
Remarks:

I.
Who is likely to experience language and/or literacy barriers within a given community? 

A.
Groups whose first language may not be English: [Slide 5]

1. Recent immigrants

2. Migrant workers

3. Guest workers (temporary work permits)

4. Undocumented workers

5. Tourists

6. Exchange students

B.
Groups likely to fall on the lower end of the literacy continuum: [Slide 6]
1. Immigrants from countries with high illiteracy rates, even if English-speaking

2. Those with limited formal education

3. Those living in rural or isolated areas

4. Poor, especially poor minorities

5. Elderly, especially older minorities

6. Women, particularly in immigrant populations  

II.
Where can the emergency managers find up-to-date information about the language and literacy needs of their communities? 

A.
Data needed

1. Level of immigration into area and countries of origin

2. Gender-specific literacy levels in countries of origin 

3. Extent to which migrant labor or guest workers are used by local enterprises

4. Extent to which illegal residents are living there

5. Extent to which foreign-born tourists or business travelers are likely to be in the area

6. Estimates of literacy rates among various segments

7. Age and minority status of population

B.
Sources for language and literacy data  [Slide 7]

1. US Census (www.census.gov) 

including American FactFinder (http://factfinder.census.gov)

2. National Center for Educational Statistics (http://nces.ed.gov)

3. International Marketing Data and Statistics (available in libraries)

4. United Nations (www.un.org)

5. Local non-profits serving at-risk groups (such as ENLA in LA)

 III.
Why is it important to have this data by sex?

A.
Literacy rates usually vary by sex, with women having lower rates.


This is just another way in which social vulnerability is gendered (refer back to Session 11 on Gender)

1.  On the National Adult Literacy Survey, US women generally scored lower than men 
2.  While illiteracy rates for men are very high in many countries, women tend to have even higher rates

· Examples: 6.7% of Mexican men are illiterate, compared to 10.6% of women; for Haiti the rates are 48% and 52.1%. [Slide 8]

· This can make it especially challenging to communicate effectively with some populations of immigrant women, even in their own language

· It is especially important for emergency managers to communicate well with women because research indicates that they are more likely to heed warnings, perceive a risk as real, and to prepare families (Fothergill 1996)

B.

Women play a key role in family preparedness, response and recovery.

1. In the United States women play a key role in family preparedness and recovery, caring for family members throughout the process, often under difficult circumstances

2. Women tend to have heavy responsibility for seeking relief supplies and assistance for the household after an event

3. The language and literacy problems of immigrant or poorly educated women can increase the difficulties associated with getting help for their families from a system that tends to place women at a disadvantage 

IV.
What do you think is the literacy level of US citizens?


A.  US literacy, while among the highest in the world, is still surprisingly low



[Slide 9]

1. While very few adults in the US are truly illiterate, there are many adults with low literacy skills who lack the foundation they need to find and keep decent jobs, support, participate actively in civic life, and support their children’s education

2. Nearly one-quarter of US adults are functioning at Level 1, i.e., considered to be functionally illiterate

3. According to the National Adult Literacy Survey (see http://nces.ed.gov)  between 21-23% of the population, approximately 44 million people are functionally illiterate

4.  Prose literacy and document literacy most nearly correspond to the skills needed to read and understand emergency instructions, and to fill out assistance application forms 

5. Thus, it can be assumed that in most communities about one-quarter of the population will need special assistance and materials, in many it will be considerably higher

 
B.  Why do you think the literacy levels are as low as they are?

· For discussion: 

· Inadequate schools 

· High dropout rates in some areas

· Lower educational levels among the elderly

· Limited cultural emphasis on reading

· Television 

V.  What does it mean to have low literacy skills?

1.    Examples from everyday life: Those functioning at Level 1 typically cannot locate eligibility from a table of employee benefits, location intersections on a street map, locate two pieces of information in a sports article, identify and enter background information on a social security card application, and calculate total costs of purchase from an order form. (Source: National Institute for Literacy website: www.nifl.gov/reders/!intro.htm.)

2. Adults consistently scoring in Level 1 are likely to be:

· Older. About 50% of adults 65 and over scored in Level 1

· Less educated. Over 75% of those with 0-8 years of education scored in Level 1

· In lower level, lower paying jobs

· Poor. Over 40% were living below the poverty line

· A member of an ethnic or racial minority group

  VI.    How can literacy levels of a given population be estimated?

1. National Adult Literacy Survey data are available for some states and counties. (See National Assessment of Adult Literacy web site for details: http://nces.ed.gov.)

2. The easiest way of estimating is from education levels [Slide 10]

· As a general rule, it can be assumed that those whose highest grade of formal schooling is:

· Grade 3 or lower will not be able to read most low literacy materials, will need repeated oral instructions, materials composed primarily of illustrations, or audio or video messages; 

· Grades 4 to 6 will need low literacy materials; 

· Grades 7 to 8 will struggle with most materials, but will not be offended by low literacy materials;

· High school graduates will be able to read most materials. (Doak et al. 1996)

· Education levels vary considerable among states [Slide 11]

Education and Language Date for Four States

	
	Percent w/o

High School Diploma
	Foreign Born
	Language Other than English
	Total Population

	California
	   23.2%
	  26.2%
	  39.5%
	34,501,120

	Florida
	12.1
	16.7
	23.1
	16,396,515

	Michigan
	16.6
	 5.3
	 8.4
	  9,990,817

	New York
	21.9
	20.4
	28.0
	19,011,378


Source: 2000 Census State & County Quick Facts. (www.census.gov)

· Education levels also vary within states (Source: www.census.gov)
· In Miami-Dade County, Florida, for example, 32% of adults do not have a high school diploma, around 51% are foreign born, and about68% speak a language other then English in the home. 

· In Pinellas County, Florida, about 500 miles north on the west coast of the state, only 16% of the adult population failed to get a high school diploma, under 10% are foreign born, and about 12% speak a language other then English in the home. 

· For discussion: 




What are the implications for emergency managers in these    


two regions?

· Sometimes scores are given in age levels.




  Example for discussion:

This short sentence needs a reading age of less than nine years. 

This longer sentence, which contains an adjectival clause and polysyllabic words, has a reading age of more than sixteen years. 

Objective 15.3
Assess the reading level of disaster-related materials

Remarks:

I.
What would you guess to be the reading level of most disaster-related materials distributed by governmental and non-governmental agencies?

A.

General discussion

B.

Material tends to be written at high reading levels.



1.
Examples and discussion:  (Instructor can evaluate others)

· “Make a Plan” available from FEMA (website:www.reeady.gov/family.plan.html) is written at about a 9th grade reading level.

· “Introduction to Blueprint for Safety” available through the Federal  Alliance for Safe Homes (website: www.flash.org) is written at about a 12th Grade reading level.

· “Food and Water in an Emergency” available through the American Red Cross (website: www.redcross.org) is written at about an 8th Grade level.

2.   Who do you think would be most likely to access these documents? 

3.   Who would not be able to understand them?

II.     Some Methods for Assessing Readability and Reading Levels [Handout]

A.   
SMOG Formula   [Slide 12] 

B.

Flesch-Kincaid Formula [Slide 13)]


C.
Quick Version Of Smog Readability Formula [Slide 14]

D.   Calculating the readability of your documents using most word processing  programs.  (See Student Assignment, Determining The Readability Of Documents using Word Processing Software.)
Emergency managers can easily determine the grade readability level of any communication prepared by their offices by using a function found on many word processing programs, including MsWord and WordPerfect.
Objective 15.4 
  Use national, state and local resources to translate or produce 

                               materials that are appropriate to local language and literacy 

                               patterns

Remarks:

I.
What are some sources of emergency or disaster-related materials published in a language other than English?


A.  Sources include:

1. FEMA website in Spanish (www.fema.gov/spanish)

2. American Red Cross materials (www.redcross.org)

3. Pan American Health Organization materials (www.paho.org)

4. Local government sources

Objective 15.5   Develop strategies for reaching isolated residents and communities 

                            with language-appropriate emergency and disaster-related 

                            messages

Remarks:

I.
How can non-English or low literacy groups be reached with emergency messages? [Slide 15]


A.  Some strategies:

1. Using a standardized vocabulary developed in various languages when conveying disaster and emergency messages, such as tornado warnings. (Aguirre 1988)
2. Adding local warning messages to regional and national broadcasts, through trailers across the screen in various languages, depending upon the community.
3.
Fully utilizing non-English media outlets 
· Spanish television channels are common in many areas

· Radio stations in Creole and other languages are found in areas with many immigrants.

4.
Outreach activities through churches, mosques and synagogues

5.
Outreach activities through local community groups

6.
Community festivals

7.
Disaster-resistant neighborhoods programs (see www.tallytown.com/redcross/drn.html) in these areas conducted in their language 

8
Hiring locals to work in outreach programs

9
Using children to convey messages, such as hurricane and earthquake protection information distributed in schools

10.
Distributing information through flyers at stores

11.
Printed messages on grocery store bags

12.
Posters throughout the community

13.
In times of emergency, driving through neighborhoods, giving the message in local language

14.
Working with local agencies and organizations in non-English speaking communities at all stages of disaster response

B.  Examples and discussion (See Student Assignment: Use examples collected by instructor and students.)

Supplemental  Considerations: 

Objective 15.1  

Hurricane Andrew:

“Another reason for the under-utilization [of tent cities] was that much of the early hurricane relief information was only given in English. The assumption that all hurricane victims were English-speakers prevented the distribution of food, medical supplies, and assistance information to some of the area’s Latinos and Haitians. To surmount the language barrier, recovery information was eventually made available in Spanish and Creole. The military was the last to make recovery information available in languages other than English.”  (Yelvington, Kevin A.  in Peacock et al. 1997, p. 96) 

While residents of Florida City (an African American community) appeared to have greater needs, they received less FEMA Individual Assistance (IA) and Individual and Family Grants (IFG) than did neighboring Homestead. Several reasons may help explain this, but according to Dash, et al. 1997), one “reason for the low application rate may have to do with confusion about the process.  Applicants had to first fill out an application for a Small Business Loan, and get turned down, before they were considered for IA and IFG funds. This process is especially difficult to understand and negotiate for people with language and literacy barriers. (Dash et al  in Peacock et al. 1997, p. 222) 

Phillips, Garza and Neal (1994) studied barriers to service delivery after Hurricane Andrew, including the “communication barrier” caused, among other reasons, by lack of translators in Haitian Creole and Spanish. These groups were eventually reached with information about where to seek help through the employment of locals to go through the communities with flyers, loud speakers, etc. 

Northridge Earthquake:

“In its speedy recovery to the Northridge earthquake, the federal government badly underestimated the number of residents left homeless, contributed to long delays at assistance centers and was overwhelmed by tens of thousands of non-English-speaking victims seeking help.” (Bunting 1994.) 

“’We’re still finding pockets of people who suffered losses and did not apply, for various reasons,’ said Fausto Recalde, an outreach worker serving central and southern Los Angeles. Yelena Lerner, a Russian-speaking federal worker, found that little attention had been paid to the city’s Russian immigrants, many of them elderly and living in the West Hollywood area. So she prepared a Russian-language flyer.” (Simon 1994)

Objective 15.2

There is a changing nature to what is called literacy in America. While concerns about inadequate literacy skills are not new, the nature of the concerns is evolving. In the past, literacy was considered the ability to read and use printed materials at an extremely basic level. Today, adults need higher levels of basic skills to function effectively in many areas of their lives, and literacy is defined more broadly to include problem-solving and higher level reasoning skills. Literacy is a range of tools that help people help themselves – and their children. It is not an end in itself, but a means to a better quality of life.

In its 1991 National Literacy Act, Congress defined literacy as: an individual’s ability to read, write, and speak in English, and compute and solve problems at levels of proficiency necessary to function on the job and in society, to achieve one’s goals, and develop one’s knowledge and potential. 

The National Adult Literacy Survey (NALS) is a household survey of English-language literacy abilities of adults ages 16 and older that was administered in 1992. The NALS assessed the literacy skills using simulations of three kinds of literacy tasks that adults would ordinarily encounter in daily life: prose literacy – the knowledge and skills needed to understand and use information from texts such as editorials, news stories, poems, and fiction; document literacy – the knowledge and skills needed to locate and use information contained in materials such as job applications, payroll forms, transportation schedules, maps, tables, and graphs; and quantitative literacy – the knowledge and skills needed to apply arithmetic operations, using numbers embedded in printed materials. (National Assessment of Adult Literacy. Http://nces.ed.gov).

NALS reflected this new concept of literacy. Rather than classifying individuals as either “literate” or “illiterate,” NALS created three literacy scales: prose literacy, document literacy, and quantitative literacy. Each scale reflects a different type of real-life literacy task. For example, tasks included the following: finding information in texts, such as newspaper articles; completing forms, such as a social security card application; and interpreting graphs and charts, such as a table of employee benefits. 

NALS makes clear that literacy is not something individuals have or don’t have. It created a literacy continuum on which people may fall at different places for different kinds of skills. NALS divided the continuum into 5 levels, with Level 5 reflecting the highest skills and Level 1, the lowest.”

Keeping these new definitions in mind, results from the 1992 NALS indicate that between 21% and 23% of American adults are at a Level 1, lowest literacy level. This equates to over 40 million Americans. Because this new method of evaluation uses a continuum, it is important to remember that many of the adults at this level will be able to some simple, basic tasks. But all the adults at this level “display difficulty using certain reading, writing, and computational skills considered necessary for functioning in everyday life.” (National Institute for Literacy website: www.nifl.gov).

A list of skills that can and cannot be performed by adults at Level 1 helps illustrate how these levels might affect the ability to understand not only disaster related materials, but also disaster assistance forms. The types of skills a Level 1 adult can usually perform are: sign one’s name; identify a country in a short article; locate one piece of information in a sports article; locate the expiration date on a driver’s license; and total a bank deposit entry. 

Skills that usually cannot be performed are: locate eligibility from a table of employees benefits; locate intersection on a street map; locate two pieces of information in a sports article; identify and enter background information on a social security card application; and calculate total costs of a purchase from an order form. 

Objective 15. 5 

“In a community with sizable proportions speaking English as a second language, if at all, non-English media sources were also important. Over 14 per cent of our respondents who relied on television depended exclusively on channels broadcasting solely in Spanish. Even greater language diversity occurs on radio. Although its full coverage began later than television, for the nearly half of our respondents who indicated radio was also important, 65 per cent listened to English-language stations and 32 per cent to Spanish. The remainder listened to both, or to another language such as Haitian Creole.” (Peacock et al. 1997, p. 57) 

Recent immigrants are often reluctant to seek information from authorities. They may not be legal residents, or they may come from a country where officials cannot be trusted. It is important for emergency managers to seek non-threatening ways to reach them with important messages.

Spanish-language stations may not cover the news in immigrant communities any better than the mainstream press. Particularly in cases where they be economically connected, such as the case with the L.A. Times owning stock in La Opinión’s parent corporation. Emergency managers need to be aware of the basis of the mass media toward covering the news in more affluent areas over marginal ones. This can affect their own mental maps of where the greatest needs are located. (Rodrigue et al. 1997)

In a survey of mass media outlets completed after Loma Prieta, one of most pressing problems reported by Spanish language media was the shortage of Spanish-speaking spokespersons from emergency management and other public agencies who could give reliable information over the airways. (Subervi-Vélez et al. 1992)

"..numerous unnecessary problems arose that may have been avoided simply by attempting to communicate with Spanish-speaking people before, rather than after, the disaster. One way of alleviating discrepancies in services provided to the Spanish-speaking communities would be to acknowledge the community and emergency-relief (health care) organizations and facilities that exist within the Spanish-speaking enclaves." (Subervi-Veléz et al. p. 64)

Student Assignments:

Before class:

1.  Collect and analyze hazard-related educational materials 

 In the next session you will be analyzing ways in which language and literacy barriers can increase the vulnerability of certain segments of the population. One important way risk is increased is when disaster or emergency-related citizen information cannot be understood. During the next class we will be examining and analyzing a variety of materials used by public and private agencies to educate the public.

In preparation for this class:

1.
Collect at least two written pamphlets or flyers written or distributed by local authorities or agencies in relation to hazards and safety. If possible, get enough copies for each class member to have one. 

2.
Find at least 5 websites that distribute hazard-related educational materials to the public. Download the pages and make copies for the class. 

3.
Write a few paragraphs giving your general impressions of what’s available and your assessment of the intended audiences.

2.   Determining The Readability Of Documents Using Word Processing Software

MsWord

In order to display Readability Statistics, 

1.
On the Tools menu, click Options, and then click the Spelling & Grammar tab. 

2.
Select the Check grammar with spelling check box.

3.
Select the Show readability statistics check box, and then click OK.

4.
Click Spelling and Grammar on the Standard toolbar.

When Word finishes checking spelling and grammar, it displays information about the reading level of the document. Specifically, it provides the Flesch Reading Ease score and the Flesch-Kincaid Grade Level score.

WordPerfect

To create a Readability Report,

1.
Click Tools, and then click Grammatik.

2.
Click Options, then Analysis, then Readability.

3.
Choose a comparison document from the Comparison Document list box. (They provide three documents to choose from for comparison purposes, or you can provide your own.


WordPerfect displays three measures. It gives the Fleisch-Kincaid Grade Level score, as well as Sentence Complexity and Vocabulary Complexity scores (100 point scales), bar graphed.

3. Additional class exercises or student homework

1. Practice using internet websites to access current data on immigration patterns and the literacy levels of countries of origin, as well as literacy levels for US native populations.

2. Map regions of the country where immigrant tend to live, using different symbols for native languages.

3. Analyze the language and literacy characteristics of their regions.
4. Practice determining the readability of disaster-related materials (in groups, if time)  
5. Practice using the readability feature on a word processing program to assess the readability of their work.  

6. Have students search for materials in other languages.

7. Begin a collection of relevant materials available in languages other than English.
8. Search for examples of successful programs addressing those with language or 

      literacy barriers.

Study Questions:

1.
Describe specific examples of literacy or language barriers hampering the access of emergency or disaster information or materials.

2.
Explain one way to analyze the reading level of educational materials.

3.
Describe how you would develop an educational program on earthquake safety for the Los Angeles area. Include what resources (human and material) you would use and their source.

Final Exam Questions:

1. 
Which best describes literacy levels in the US?


a.  They are the highest in the world


b.  Nearly one-quarter of adults are functionally illiterate


c.  About 5% of the population is functionally illiterate

 
d.  The highest rates of literacy are for older adults

2.
List 3 examples of sources of up-to-date data on population language and literacy information, explaining what you would look for at each and how you would use it.

3.
Plan an outreach program to get evacuation information, both preparatory and at the time of an event, to a neighborhood of recent immigrants from Haiti.

References Cited: 

Bunting, Glenn F. 1994. “Earthquake: The Long Road Back.” Los Angeles Times. February 4, 1B. Available through Lexis-Nexis. http://web.lexis-nexis.com.

Dash, Nicole, W. G. Peacock and B.H. Morrow. 1997, p. 222. “And the Poor Get Poorer.” Pp. 206-225 in Peacock, W.G., B.H. Morrow and H. Gladwin, Hurricane Andrew: Ethnicity, Gender and the Sociology of Disaster.  Miami: International Hurricane Center.

Doak, C., Doak, L., Root, J. 1996. Teaching Patients with Low Literacy Skills, Second Edition, Philadelphia: Lippincott Infosoft International, Inc. 1993. Online at http://ftp.support.lotus.com.)

Fothergill, Alice. 1996. “Gender, Risk and Disaster.” International Journal of Mass Emergencies and Disasters. 14 (1): 33-56.
McLaughlin, H. 1969. “SMOG grading - a new readability formula” Journal of Reading 22, 639-646.

National Assessment of Adult Literacy. Http://nces.ed.gov
Phillips, Brenda, Lisa Garza and David Neal. 1994. “Intergroup relations in Disasters: Service Delivery Barriers after Hurricane Andrew.” The Journal of Intergroup Relations XXI (3):18-27.

Simon, Richard. 1994. “Quake Aid Requests Near Half Million Mark.” Los Angeles Times. April 2, p. A1. NewsBank NewsFile Collection http://infoweb5.newsbank.com.

Subervi-Veléz, Federico A., Maria Denney, Anthony Ozuna and Clara Quintero. 1992. Communicating with California’s Spanish-Speaking Populations. A Policy Research Program Report. University of California, California Policy Seminar.

US Department of Health and Human Services. 1992. Making Health Communication Programs Work, A Planner’s Guide.

        




       SESSION 15 HANDOUT 

SOME METHODS FOR ASSESSING

READIBILITY AND READING LEVELS

A.   
SMOG Formula   

1.
Select 3 samples of 10 consecutive sentences from different sections of your text (at least 100 words total).

2.
Count the total number of words that have 3 or more syllables in the 30 sentences.

3.  
Get out your calculator and calculate the square root of the number.

4.  
Add 3 and that will be the approximate reading level.

(Source: McLaughlin, H. 1969. “SMOG grading - a new readability formula” Journal of Reading 22, 639-646.)

B.

Flesch-Kincaid Formula (Slide 10)

This readability test rates text on a 100-point scale; the higher the score, the easier it is to understand the document. For most standard documents, a score of approximately 60 to 70 is desirable.

1.  Calculate L, the average sentence length 

(number of words/number of  sentences).

2.  Calculate N, the average number of syllables per word 

(number of syllables/number of words.

3.  Calculate grade level with formula: (L x 0.39) + (N x 11.8) – 15.59.

4.  Calculate reading age with formula: (L x 0.39) + (N x 11.8) – 10.59

 (Source: US Department of Defense)

C.
To test a text that has fewer than 30 sentences, using the SMOG:


1.  Count all the words of polysyllabic words (i.e., more than 3 syllables).



2.  Count the number of sentences.



3.  Find the average number of  polysyllabic words per sentence:




Average = Total # of polysyllabic words/Total # of sentences



4.  Multiply that average by the number of sentences short of 30.



5.  Add that figure on to the total number of polysyllabic words.



6.  Find the square root and add the constant of 3.

D.
Quick Version Of Smog Readability Formula
Count the number of polysyllabic words (3 or more syllables) in a chain of 30 sentences and look up the approximate grade level on the SMOG conversion table.

SMOG Conversion Table (Slide 11)

	Total polysyllabic word count
	Approximate grade level (+/- l.5 grades)

	0-2
	4

	3-6
	5

	7-12
	6

	13-20
	7

	21-30
	8

	31-42
	9

	43-56
	10

	57-72
	11

	73-90
	12

	91-110
	13

	111-132
	14

	133=156
	15

	157-182
	16

	183-210
	17

	211-240
	18


Source:  US Department of Health and Human Services. 1992. Making Health Communication Programs Work, A Planner’s Guide.
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